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BEFORE THE ILLINOIS POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS,
by LISA MADIGAN, Attorney
General of the State of Illinois,

Complainant,

(Enforcement —Water/Air)

STARVED ROCK ADVENTURES, INC.,
an Illinois corporation,

)
)
)
)
)
)
v. ) PCB
)
)
)
)
)

Respondent.

- NOTICE OF ELECTRONIC FILING

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that we have today, September 12, 2014, filed the initial
Complaint in this matter with the Office of the Clerk of the Illinois Pollution Control Board, by
electronic filing. At true and accurate copy of the Complaint is attached herewith and served
upon you.

Failure to file an answer to this complaint within 60 days may have severe consequences.
Failure to answer will mean that all allegations in the complaint will be taken as if admitted for
purposes of this proceeding. If you have any questions about this procedure, you should contact

the hearing officer assigned to this proceeding, the £lerk’s Office or ap attorney.

BY:

CHRISTOPHER GRANT
Environmental Bureau

Assistant Attorney General

69 W. Washington Street, #1800
Chicago, Illinois 60602

(312) 814-5388
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BEFORE THE ILLINOIS POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS,
by LISA MADIGAN, Attorney
General of the State of Illinois,

Complainant,

(Enforcement —Water/Air)

STARVED ROCK ADVENTURES, INC., -
an Illinois corporation,

)
)
)
)
)
)
V. ) PCB
)
)
)
)
)

Respondent.

COMPLAINT

Complainant, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, by LISA MADIGAN, Attorney
General of the State of Illinois, complains of Respondent, STARVED ROCK ADVENTURES,

INC.,, as follows:

COUNT I
AIR POLLUTION

L. | This complaint is brought on behalf of the People of the State of Illinois by LISA
'MADIGAN, Attorney General of the State of [llinois, on her own motion and at the request of
the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency (“Illinois EPA”) pursuant to the provisions of
Section 31 of the Environmental Protection Act (“Act”), 415 ILCS 5/31(2012).

2. The Illinois EPA is an agency of the State of Illinois created by the Illinois

General Assembly in Section 4 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/4 (2012), and charged, inter alia, with the -

duty of enforcing the Act and regulations promulgated by the Illiﬁois Pollution Control Board

(“Board”).
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.3. Respondent, STARVED ROCK ADVENTURES, INC. (“SRA™), is an Illinois
corporation duly authorized to transact business in the State of Illinois.

4. SRA owns a parcel of land consisting of approximately 17 acres located at 1170
North 27™ Road (also known as Dee Bennett Road), Ottawa, La Salle County, Illinois (“Site™).
The Site is located along the north bank of the Illinois River. Recreational businesses and
marinas are located east and west of the Site along the river. A mixed field/wetland area lies
north of the Site between North 27™ Road and the Illinois & Michigan Canal (“I&M Canal”).

5. At all times relevant to the Complaint, SRA was developing the Site for use as a
camping and recreational facility. The development project included construction of buildings,
installation of sewers, construction of campsites and recreational vehicle facilities, and |
construction of gravel roads. As part of its construction activities, SRA excavated and disturbed
soil and cleared areas of trees and brush at the Site.

6. On April 9, 2012, SRA began burning landscépe waste in open piles at the Site.
The landscape waste consisted of brush, weeds, grass, stumps and scrap wood from SRA’s Site
clearing operations. The fire ignited dry brush at the Site and threatened to spread to
ﬁeighboring pfoperties. The Utica Illinois Fire Department was called to, and did, extinguish
the resulting brush fire.

7. On June 14, 2012, SRA was again burning cleared landscape waste in open piles
at the Site, when the fire ignited a nearby accumulation of firewood. Units from thf; Utica
[llinois Fire Department and Naplate Illinois Fire Departments were called to, and did,

extinguish the burning firewood pile.

8. On September 11, 2012, SRA again began burning cleared landscape waste in
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open piles at the Site.  The fire from the burning piles spread out of control and ignited a large
brush fire in the field/wetland area north of North 27”’_Road. The brush fire eventually spread to

at least 150 acres in the field/wetland area.

9. On September 11, 2012, the Utica Illinois and Naplate Illinois Fire Departments

again responded to the fire and were joined by other La Salle County mutual aid fire

departments.

10.  Asaresult of smoke from the September 11, 2012 fire, North 27" Road was
closed to vehicle traffic and an adjacent railroad track was closed to train traffic. Due to the
smoke and road closures, adjacent local businesses were forced to close for the day.

11. Section 9(a) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(a) (2012), provides, as follows:

No person shall:

a. Cause or threaten or allow the discharge or emission of any contaminant
into the environment in any State so as to cause or tend to cause air
pollution in Illinois, either alone or in combination with contaminants
from other sources, or so as to violate regulations or standards adopted by
the Board under this Act;

12. Section 201.141 of the Board Air Pollution regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code

201.141, provides, as follows:
Prohibition of Air Pollution

No person shall cause or threaten or allow the discharge or emission of any
contaminant into the environment in any State so as, either alone or in
combination with contaminants from other sources, to cause or tend to cause air
pollution in Illinois, or so as to violate the provisions of this Chapter, or so as to
prevent the attainment or maintenance of any applicable ambient air quality

standard.

13. Section 3.315 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.315 (2012), provides, as follows:

“Person” is any individual, partnership, co-partnership, firm, company, limited
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liability company, corporation, association, joint stock company, trust, estate,
political subdivision, state agency, or any other legal entity, or their legal
representative, agent or assigns.

14, | The Respondent, a corporation, is a “person” as that term is defined in Section
3.315 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.315 (2012).
15. Section 3.165 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.165 (2012), provides, as follows:

"Contaminant” is any solid, liquid, or gaseous matter, any odor, or any form of
energy, from whatever source.

16. The smoke from the landscape waste, WO(')d, grass, and brush fires that occurred
on April 9, 2012, June 14, 2012, and September 11, 2012 is a “contaminant” as that term is
defined in Section 3.165 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.165 (2012).

17. Section 3.115 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.115 (2012), provides, as follows:

"Air pollution" is the presence in the atmosphere of one or more contaminants in
sufficient quantities and of such characteristics and duration as to be injurious to

human, plant, or animal life, to health, or to property, or to unreasonably interfere
with the enjoyment of life or property.

18. On September 11, 2012, smoke from the burning landscape waste and the 150
acre brush fire threatened human health, resulted in highway and railroad closures, and interfered
with operation of businesses and the enjoyment of property in the vicinity of the Site. The
smoke from the burning landscape waste and resultant brush fire constitutes “air pollution” as
that term is defined in Section 3.115 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.115 (2012).

19. By causing and allowing the open burning of landscape waste at the Site on at
least September 11, 2012, Respondent SRA caused, threatened or allowed air pollution, and

thereby violated Section 9(a) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(a) (2012), and 35 Ill. Adm. Code 201.141.
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| WHEREFORE, Complainant, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, respectfully
requests that the Board enter an order against Respondent, STARVED ROCK ADVENTURES,
INC., on Count I:
1. Authorizing a hearing in this matter at which time the Respondent will be
required to answer the allegations herein;

2. Finding that the Respondent has violated Section 9(a) of the Act and 35 Ill. Adm.

Code 201.141;

3. Ordering the Respondent to cease and desist from future violations of Section 9(a)
of the Act and 35 Ill. Adm. Code 201.141;

4, As_sessing a civil penalty of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) against the
Respondént for each violation of Section 9(a) of the Act and 35 Ill. Adm. Code 201.141 and anv
additional penalty of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) for each day the violations continued,;

5. Ordering the Respondent to pay all costs, pursuant to Section 42(f) of the Act,
including attorney, expert witness and consultant fees expended by the State in its pursuit of this-
action; and

6. Granting such other relief as the Board deems appropriate and just.

COUNT II
OPEN BURNING OF REFUSE AND TRADE WASTE

1-15. Complainant realleges and incorporates by reference herein paragraphs 1 through
11, and paragraphs 13 through 16, of Count I, as paragraphs 1 through 15 of this Count IL.
16. On April 9, 2012, June 14, 2012, and September 11, 2012, Respondent SRA

burned landscape waste from Site clearing operations in open piles at the Site. Emissions from
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the burning landscape waste were discharged to the atmosphere without being routed through a
pollution control device. |

17. Section 9(c) of the Act, 415 ILCS'5/9(c) (2012), provides, in pertinent part, as
follows:

No person shall:

(c) cause or allow the open burning of refuse....
18. Section 3.300 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.300 (2012), provides, as follows:

“Open burning” is the combustion of any matter in the open or in an open.
dump” '

19. Section 3.385 of'the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.385 (2012), provides, as follows:
“Refuse” means waste.
20. Section 3.535 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.535 (2012), provides, in pertinent part, as

“follows:

“Waste” means any garbage...or any other discarded material, including
any solid, liquid, semi-solid, or contained gaseous material resulting from
industrial, commercial, mining and agricultural operations, and from
community activities.... :

21. Pursuant to authority granted under Section 9 of the Act, the Board has
promulgated regulations governing the open burning of materials in the State of Illinois, codified
at 35 Ill. Adm. Code Part 237 (“Board Open Burning regulations™).

22.  Section 237.102 of the Board Open Burning regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code

237.102, provides, in pertinent part, as follows:

Section 237.102 Prohibitions
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a) No person shall cause or allow open burning, except as provided in
this Part.

23.  Section 237.101 of the Board Open Burning regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code

237.101, provides, in pertinent part, as follows:

“Landscape Waste”: Any vegetable or plant refuse, except garbage and
agricultural waste. The term includes trees, tree trimmings, branches, stumps,
brush, weeds, leaves, grass, shrubbery and yard trimmings. ’

* * *

“Open Burning”: The combustion of any matter in such a way that the products
of the combustion are emitted to the open air without originating or passing
through equipment for which a permit could be issued under Section 9(b) of the

Act.

* * *

“Trade Waste”: Any refuse resulting from the prosecution of any trade, business,
industry, commercial venture, utility or service activity, and any government or
institutional activity, whether or not for profit. The term includes landscape waste

but excludes agricultural waste.

24,  The brush, weeds, grass, stumps, and scrap wood derived from SRA’s clearing
operations is ‘discardéd material’ and therefore “waste” as that term is deﬁnec‘l‘by Section 3.535
of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.535 (2012).  As waste, the material is also “refuse”, as that term is
defined by Section 3.385 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.385 (2012).

25.  The brush, weeds, grass, stumps, and scrap wood derived from SRA’s clearing
operations is “landscape waste™ as that term is defined in Section 237.101 of the Board Open
Burning regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 237.101. Because the waste was derived from clearing
of the Site as part of a commercial development project, the landscape waste is also “trade

waste” as that term is defined in Section 237.101 of the Board Open Burning regulations, 35 I1I.

. Adm. Code 237.101.
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26. On at least April 9, 2012, June 14, 2012, and September 11, 2012, SRA eng'aged
in the open burning of waste at the Site, and thereby violated Section 9(c) of the Act, 415 ILCS
5/9(c) (2012).

27. On at least April 9, 2012, June 14, 2012, and September 11, 2012, SRA burned
landscape waste and trade waste, and allowed the emissions to enter the atmosphere without first
passing through a permitted control device. Respondent SRA thereby violated Section 237.102
of the Board Open Burning regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 237.102, and thereby also violated
Section 9(a) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(a) (2012).

WHEREFORE, Complainant, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, respectfully
requests that the Board enter an order against Respondent, STARVED ROCK ADVENTURES,
INC., on Count II:

1. Authorizing a hearing in this matter at which time the Respondent will be
required to answer the allegations herein;

2. Finding that the Respondent has violated Sections 9(a) and 9(c) of the Act, and 35
I1I. Adm. Code 237.102;

3. Ordering the Respondent to cease and desist from further violations of Sections
9(a) and 9(c) of the Act, and 35 Ill. Adm. Code 237.102;

4. Assessing a civil penalty of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) against the
Respondent for each violation of Sections 9(a) and 9(c) of the Act, and 35 Ill. Adm. Code
237.102, and an additional penalty of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) for each day the

violation continued;
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5. Ordering the Respondent to pay all costs, pursuant to Section 42(f) of the Act,
including attorney, expert witness and consultant fees exppnded by the State in its pursuit of this
action; and

6. Granting such other relief as the Board deems appropriate and just.

COUNT III
CREATING A WATER POLLUTION HAZARD

1-7.  Complainant realleges and incorporates by reference herein paragraphs 1 through
5, and paragraphs 13 through 14, of Count I, as paragraphs 1 through 7 of this Count I1I.

8. On October 16, 2012, inspectors from Illinois EPA and LaSalle County
Environmental Services visited the Site to investigate possible violations and verify compliance
with SRA’s National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (“NPDES”) permit for
construction activities.

9. On October 16, 2012, morerﬂ than one acre of land at the Site had been disturbed by
the ongoing construction activities. No silt fencing, silt fabric, hay bales, or other barriers had
been installed by SRA to prevent migration of sediment or debris into the Illinois River during
rain events.

10. . On October 16, 2012, the inspectors observed piles of debris that SRS had
dumped and/or accumulated along the Illinois River as part of its construction project. The
inspectors observed three piles of mixed soil and rock that had been placed within twenty (20)
feet of the Illinois River. The inspectors also observed a pile of disturbed soil and leaf litter
which also had been placed within twenty (20) feet of the River. In addition, the inspectors
observed a pile of cut brush and wood debris that had been placed within seventy-five (75) feet

of the Illinois River.
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11. Section 12 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/12 (2012), provides, in pertivnent part, as

follows: .
No person shall:

(d) Deposit any contaminants upon the land in such place and
manner so as to create a water pollution hazard.

12. Section 3.165 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.165 (2012), provides the following

definition:
“Contaminant” is any solid, liquid, or gaseous matter, any odor, or any
form of energy, from whatever source.
13. The mixed soils and rock, disturbed soil, and cut brush and wood debris

resulting from SRA’s Site clearing and construction activities are “contaminant[s]” as

that term is defined by 415 ILCS 5/3.165 (2012).

14.  Section 3.550 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.550 (2012), provides the following

definition:

“Waters” means all accumulation of water, surface and underground,
natural, and artificial, public and private, or parts thereof, which are
wholly or partially within, flow through, or border upon this State.

15. The Illinois River is a “water” of the State as that term is defined by 415

ILCS 5/3.550 (2012).

16. Section 3.545 of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/3.545 (2012), provides the following

definition:

“Water pollution” is such alteration of the physical, thermal, chemical,
biological or radioactive properties of any waters of the State, or such
discharge of any contaminant into any waters of the State, as will or is
likely to create a nuisance or render such waters harmful or detrimental or
injurious to public health, safety or welfare, or to domestic, commercial,
industrial, agricultural, recreational, or other legitimate uses, or to

10
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livestock, wild animals, birds, fish, or other aquatic life.

17.  Migration of soil, rock, sediment, and cut brush and scrap wood into the -
Illinois River would impair water quality and render, or tend to render, the water in the
Illinois River harmful or injurious to public health, livestock, fish and other aquatic life,
and create a nuisance. |

18. By depositing materials generated during its cbnstruction, including mixed
soil and rock, disturbed soil, and cut brush and scrap wood, in close proximity to the
Illinois River, without first installing silt fences, silt fabric, hay bales, or other barriers to
prevent migration of these contaminants into the river, SRA deposited contaminants on
the land in such manner as to create a water pollution hazard. Respondent SRA thereby
violated Section 12(d) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/12 (d) (2012).

WHEREFORE, Corhplainant, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, respectfully
requeists that the Board enter an order against Respondent, STARVED ROCK ADVENTURES,
INC., on Count III: |

1. Authorizing a hearing in this matter at which time the Respondent will be
required to answer the allegations herein;

2. Finding that the Respondent has violated Section 12(d) of the Act;

3. Ordering the Respondent to cease and desist from any further violations of
Section 12(d) of the Act;

4, Assessing a civil penalty of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) against the
Respondent for each violation of Section 12(d) of the Act, and an additional penalty of Ten

Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) for each day the violations continued,

11
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5. Ordering the Respondent to pay all costs, pursuant to Section 42(f) of the Act,
including attorney, expert witness and consultant fees expended by the State in its pursuit of this
action; and

6. Granting such other relief as the Board deems appropriate and just.

COUNT IV
NPDES PERMIT VIOLATION: VIOLATION OF PERMIT CONDITIONS

1-12. Plaintiff realleges and incorporates by reference herein paragraphs 1 through 10,
and paragraphs 14 through 15 of Count III, as paragraphs 1 through 12 of Count I'V.

13.  On May 16, 2012, SRA filed a Notice of Intent (“NOI”) with Illinois EPA’s
Bureau of Water, Pérmit Section. The NOI sought coverage under Illinois EPA’s General Permit
to Discharge Storm Water from Construction Site Activities (“General Storm Water Permit”) for
its development of the Site. Along with the NOI, SRA submitted a Storm Water Pollution
Prevention Plan (“SWPPP”) to Illinois EPA.

14. On October 3, 2012, Illinois EPA issued coverage for the Site under the Hlinois
General Storm Water Permit, subject to enumerated conditions, as NPDES Permit No.
ILR10Q095 (“NPDES Permit”). A true and accurate copy of the NPDES Permit for the Site is
attached hereto as “Exhibit A”.

15, On October 12-13, 2012, LaSalle County recorded a rainfall of 1-2 inches. On
October 16, 2012, the Illinois EPA inspector requested copies of reports of Site inspections made
by SRA. However, SRA did not have reports of any inspections of the Site made in response to
the October 12-13, 2012 rain event.

16. On October 16, 2012, SRA failed to have a copy of the NPDES Permit or its

SWPPP at the Site.

12
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17.  Following the October 16, 2012 inspection, the Illinois EPA inspector returned to
his office and located the SWPPP submitted by SRA for Site activities. The inspector
determined the SWPPP submitted by SRA on May 16, 2012 Had failed to provide any site-
specific information describing potential sources of pollution present at the Site, appropriate
sediment controls, or when and how the controls would be installed and used at the Site.

18.  Section 12(f) of the Act, 415 ILCS 12(f) (2012), provides, in pertinent part, as

follows;

No person shall:

f. Cause, threaten or allow the discharge of any contaminant into the
waters of the State, as defined herein, including but not limited to,
waters to any sewage works, or into any well or from any point
source within the State, without an NPDES permit for point source
discharges issued by the Agency under Section 39(b) of this Act,
or in violation of any term or condition imposed by such
permit...or in violation of any regulations adopted by the Board or
of any order adopted by the Board with respect to the NPDES

program.

19.  The Site is a “point source” as that term is used in Section 12(f) of the Act, 415

ILCS 5/12(f) (2012).
20. Section 309.102 of the Board regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 309.102, provides, in

pertinent part, as follow:
Section 309.102 NPDES Permit Required

a) Except as in compliance with the provisions of the Act, Board regulations,
and the CWA, and the provisions and conditions of the NPDES permit
issued to the discharger, the discharge of any contaminant or pollutant by
any person into the waters of the State from a point source or into a well
shall be unlawful.

13
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21.

Section 305.102 of the Board regulations, 35 [ll. Adm. Code 305.102, provides, in

pertinent part, as follows:

22.

Section 305.102 Reporting Requirements

b) Every holder of an NPDES (National Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System) permit is required to comply with the monitoring, sampling,
recording and reporting requirements set forth in the permit and this
Chapter.

Condition IV. of the NPDES Permit provides, in pertinent part, as follows:
Part IV. Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plans

A storm water pollution prevention plan shall be developed for each construction
site covered by this permit. Storm water pollution prevention plans shall be
prepared in accordance with good engineering practices. The plan shall identify
potential sources of pollution which may reasonably be expected to affect the
quality of storm water discharges associated with construction site activity from
the facility....Facilities must implement the provisions of the storm water pollution
prevention plan required under this part as a condition of this permit.

* * *
B. Signature, Plan Review and Compliance,
1. The plan shall be signed in accordance with part VI.G (Signatory

Requirements), and be retained on-site at the facility which |
generates the storm water discharge in accordance with Part VL.E
(Duty to Provide Information) of this permit.

2. Prior to commencement of construction, the permittee shall
" provide the plan to the Agency. Said plan shall be available at the
site.
* * *
D. Contents of Plan. The storm water pollution prevention plan shall

include the following:

* * ®

14
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2. Controls. Each plan shall include a description of appropriate
controls that will be implemented at the construction site. The
Illinois Urban manual or other similar documents shall be used for
developing the appropriate management practices, controls or
revisions of the plan. The plan will clearly describe for each
major activity...appropriate controls and the timing during the
construction process that the controls will be implemented.....

* * *

4, Inspections. Qualified personnel (provided by the permittee) shall
inspect disturbed areas of the construction site that have not been
finally stabilized, structural control measures, and locations where
vehicles enter or exit the site at least once every seven calendar
days and within 24 hours of the end of a storm that is 0.5 inches or
greater or equivalent snowfall.....

* * *

c. A report summarizing the scope of the inspection, name(s)
and qualifications of personnel making the inspection, the
date(s) of the inspection, major observations relating to the
implementation of the storm water pollution prevention
plan.....shall be made and retained as part of the storm
water pollution prevention plan for at least three years from
the date that the permit coverage expires or is terminated.
All inspection reports shall be retained at the construction
site. The report shall be signed in accordance with Part
VI.G (Signatory Requirements) of this permit.

23. On at least October 16, 2012, Respondent SRA failed to retain a copy of its

SWPPP at the Site. Respondent SRA thereby violated Conditions IV.B.1 and IV. B.2 of the

NPDES Permit.

24.  On at least October 16, 2012, Respondent SRA failed to have copies of reports at
the Site documenting inspections made following the 1-2 inch rainfall that occurred on October

12-13,2012. Respondent SRA thereby violated Condition IV.D.4.c of the NPDES Permit.

15
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25.  Respondent initiated construction activities at the Site prior to October 16, 2012,
but failed to develop an SWPPP that included a description of potential sources of pollution from
its construction activities at the Site, appropriate and Site-specific sediment controls, or how
storm water management would be implemented at the Site. Respondent SRA thereby violated
Condition IV.D.2 of the NPDES Permit.

| 26. By violating Conditions IV.B.1, IV.B.2, IV.D.4.c, and IV.D.2 of the NPDES
Permit, Respondent SRA thereby violated Section 12(f) of the Act, 415 ILCS 5/12(f) (2012), and
Section 309.102 of the Board regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 309.102.

27. By failing to make and keep records of site inspections following a storm
resulting in more than 0.5 inches of rain, Respondent also violated Section 305.102 of the Board
regulations, 35 Ill. Adm. Code 305.102, thereby violating Section 12(f) of the Act, 415 ILCS
5/12(f) (2012).

WHEREFORE, Complainant, PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, respectfully
requests that the Board enter an order against Respondent, STARVED ROCK ADVENTURES,

INC., on Count IV:

1. Authorizing a hearing in this matter at which time the Respondent will be

required to answer the allegations herein;

2. Finding that the Respondent has violated Section 12(f) of the Act, and 35 II.

Adm. Code Sections 309.102 and 305.102;

3. Ordering the Respondent to cease and desist from any further violations of

Section 12(f) of the Act, and 35 Ill. Adm. Code Sections 309.102 and 305.102;

16
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4, Assessing a civil pena]fy of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) against the

Respondent for each day of violation of Section 12(f) of the Act, and 35 Ill. Adm. Code Sections

309.102 and 305.102,;

S. Ordering the Respondent to pay all costs, pursuant to Section 42(f) of the Act,

including attorney, expert witness and consultant fees expended by the State in its pursuit of this

action; and

6. Granting such other relief as the Board deems appropriate and just.

BY:

Of Counsel:

CHRISTOPHER J. GRANT
Assistant Attorney General
Environmental Bureau

69 W. Washington Street, Suite 1800
Chicago, Illinois 60602

(312) 814-5388

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS

by LISA MADIGAN,
Attorney General of the State of Illinois

MATTHEW J. DUNN, Chief
Environmental Enforcement/Asbestos
Litigation Division

ELpboit [ Jedlee

ELIZABETH WALLACE, Chief

Environmeéntal Bureau
Assistant Attorney General

17
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NPDES Permit MNo. ILR10

General NPDES Permit No. ILR10

Minois Environmental Protection Agency
Division of Water Poliution Control
1021 North Grand Avenue East
Post Office Box 19276
Springfield, Hlinols ©2794-9276

NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM

General NPDES Permit
For
Storm Water Discharges From Construction Site Activities

August 11, 2008

Effective Date: August 11, 2008

In compliance with the provisiens of the lllinois Environmental Protection Act, the Iifinois Pollution Confrol Board Rules and Regulations (35 B, Adm. Code,
Subtilis C, Chapter i}, and the Clean Waler Act, and the regulations thereunder ihe following discharpes are authorized by this permil in at.cordance with the

conditions and attachments herein.

4 i{? ;{j/z
J pp)
my’ ?@é&w

Nan Kelier, P.E.
Manager, Permit Section
Division of Water Poilution Control

Partl. COVERAGE UNDER THIS PERMIT

A

Permit Area. The permit covers all areas of the Slate of iinois with discharges 1o any waters of the State.
p

Eligibility.

1.

This permil shail authorize el discharges of storm water associated with industial activity from ronstruction sites thal will resultin the dislurbance of
one or more acres total land area, conslruction sites fess than one agre of iotal fand halis part of a larger common plan of development or sale if
the larger comman plan will ultireataly disturb one or more acres fotal land area. This permit also autharizes discharges from construction sites

designated by the Agency that have the potential for contribution ta & viclation of water qualily standards or significant conlribution of pollutants to -

waters of ihe State, oceurring alter the effective date of this permit (including discharges occurring after the effective data of this permit are also
authorized by this permil; except for discharges identified undar Part 1.B.3 {Limitations on Coverage).

This permit ray anly authorize a storm water discharge associated wilh indusirial activity from a construction site that is mixed with a storm waler
discharge from an industrial source othér than consiruction, where:

a.  the industrial source other than conslruction is Jocated on tha sare site as the cansiruction antivity;

b. storm water dia‘Chaf(,GS associated with industrial activit frou the argas Of the site where copstruction activities are occurring are in compliance
with the terms of this permil; and

storm water discharges associated with industrial activity from the areas of he site where industrial aclivily other than construction are occurring
{including storrn waler discharges from dedicated asphall plants and dodicated concrele plants) are covered by a different NPDES general
permit or individusl permit authorizing such discharges.

Limitations on Coveraga. The lollowing slorm water discharges from construction sites are not authorized by this permit;

a.  stormwaler discharges associated with industrial activily that originate from the site afler construction activities have bean completed and the
site has undergone finatl stabilization,

EXHIBIT

A
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b. discharges that are mixed with sources of non-storm water other than discharges identified in Part IlLA (Prohibilion on Non-Storm Water
Discharges) of this permit and in compliance with paragraph IV.D.5 (Non-Storm Water Discharges) of this permit;

¢. storm water discharges associated with industrial activily (hat are subject lo an existing NPDES individual orgeheral permit or which are issued
a parmil in accordance with Part VI.N (Requiring an Individual Permit or an Alternative General Permit) of this permit. Such discharges may be
authorized under this permit after an existing permit expires provided the existing permit did not establish numeric fimitations for such

discharges:.

d. storn waler discharges from construciion sites that the Agency has determined (o be or may reasonably be expecled to be contribufing to a
violalion of a water quality standard; and

Storm water discharges that the Agency, al ils discreion, determines are nol appropriately authorized or controfled by this general permit.

o

f.  Storm water discharges 10 any receiving water specified under 35 . Adm. Code 302.105(3)(B).

Authorization.

In order for storm water discharges from construction siles to be authorized to discharge under this general pemit a discharger must submit 2 Nolice
of Intent (NOI) in accordance with the requirements of Part i below, using an NOU form provided by the Agency.

Whare a new contractor is selected after the submittal of an NOLunder Part il below, a new Notice of inten{ (NOI) must be submitied by the ownerin
accordange with Part )L

For projects that have complied with Stale taw on historic preservation and andangered species prier to submittal of the NG, thraugh coordination
with the liinois Historic Presenvation Agency and the lllincis Departmeni of Natural Resources or through fulfilirnent of the terms of inlarpgency
agreements with {hose agencies, the NOI shall indicate that such compliance has occurred.

Unless notlified by the Agency 1o iheé conltrary, dischargers who submil an NOHin accordanee with the requirements of this permit are authorized 1o
discharge storm water from construction sites under the terms and conditfons of this permit in 30 days after the date the NO! is received by the
Agency.

The Agency may deny coverage under ihis permit and require submiltal of an applicalion for an individual NPDES permit based on 4 review of the
N1 or other information.

Partll. NOTICE OF INTENT REQUIREMENTS

A, -

Deadlines for Notification.

o

To receive authorization under this general permit. & discharger musl submit a complated Nolice of intent (NO1) in accordance with Part V.G
(Signatory Requirements) and tie requiremants of this Part in sufficient fme to allow a 3¢ day review period afier the recelpt of the NOI by the
Agency and ihe start of constructian, The cempletad NGI may be submitied electonically 1o the following smatl address:

epa.ponslilc] Dswpepilingis.gov

Discharges that were previously coversd by a valid General NPDES Permit for Storm Water Dischargas from Conslruchion Site Activities are
automalically coverad by this peonit.

A dischargermay submitan NO!n accordanice with the requirements of this Part after the starl of construction. In such inslances, the Agency may
bring an enforcement aclion for any discharges of storm water associated with industrisl activity from a construction site that have accurred on or
after the stari of construction.

Failure to Notify. Dischargers who fail to nolify the Agency of their Istent o bie covered, and discharge storm water agsociated with construction site
aclivily to Waters of the Stale without an NPDES permit, are in violaion of the Environmental Protection Act and Clean Waler Acl,

-

Contents of Notice of intent. The Notice of Intent shall be signed in accordence with Part V.G (Signatory Requiremsnts) of this permit by all of the
entities identified in paragraph 2 balow and shall include the following information:

1,

The mailing address, and iocation of the conslruction site for which the notification Is submitied. Where a mailing address for the site is not available,
the location can be described in terms of the latifude and longitude of the appraximate center of the facility to the nezarest 15 seconds, or the nearest
quarter section (if the scolion, township and range fs provided) thal the construction site is located in;

The owner's name, address, felephone number, and status as Federal, Stale, private, public or other eniity:
The name, address and tetephonge number of the general contraclor(s) thal have been identified at the ime of the NO! submittal;

The name of the receiving water(s), or if the discharge is through a municipal separate storm sewer, the name of the municipal operator of the storm
sewer and the ullimate receiving water(s);

The number of any NPDES permit for any discharge (including non-storm water discharges) from the site thal is currently authorized by an NPDES
permil;
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/\ c' escription of the project, detailing the complete scope of the project, estirnated fimelable for major activities and an estimate of the number of
ah

of tha sile on which soil will be disturbed; and

An electronic copy of the storm water pollution prevention plan that has been prepared for the sile in accordance with Part IV of this permit. The

electronic copy shall be submitted lo the Agency at the following email address: gpa.constir1 Oswppp@illincis,gov

D. Where to Submit,

E.
pians, in addition o filing copies of the Notice of Intent in accordance with Pari D above, shalf also submil signed copies of the Nolice of Intent o the local
agency approving such plans in aceordance with the deadlines in Part A above. See Part IV.D.2.d (Approved State or Local Plans).

¥, Notice of Termination. Whare a siie has beon finally stabilized and all slorm water discharges from construclion sites thal are avthorized by this permit
are eliminated, the permitiee of the facility must submit a completed Notice of Terminztion that is signed in sccordance with Part VLG (Signalory
Requirgments) of this permit,
1, he Notice of Termination shall include the following mformaticn:

a.  The mailing aduress. and location of the vonstruclion site for which the notification is submitied, Where a mailing addrass for the site is not
avaitable, the tocation can be described in terms of the falitude and longitude of the approximate center of the facility 1o the nearest 15 seconds.
or the nearest quarier section (il the seclion. lownship and range is provided) thal the construction site is {oaated in;

n.  The owner's name. nddress, telephone number, and status as Federal, State, private, public or olher entity;

¢.  The name, address and telephone number of the gerieral coniracior(s); and

d. The foilo wing certification signed in accordance with Part VI.G {Signatory Requiremenis) of this permit:

"1 certify under penalty of law that all storm waler discharges associated with construction site activity from the ientified facility that are
authorized by NPDES general permit ILR10 have othemwise been elininaied. | understand hat by submitting fhis nolice of termination, that |
am ne longer authorized o discharge storm waler associated with cansvuction site activity by the general permit, and that discharging
poltutants in storrn water associated with construction site activity to Waters of the State is unlawful under he Environmantal Prolection Act and
Clean Walter Act where the discharge is not authonzed by a NPDES parmit. t also understand that the submittal of this ntice of termination
doas noj release an operator fram liabity for any violations of this permit or the Clean Water AcL”
For the purposes ol this cerlification, elirination of storm water discharges associated with indusisal activity means that all disturbed soils atthe
identified facility have been finally stabilized and lemporary erosion end sediment conirol measures have been removed arwill be removed at
an appropriate time, or that all storm water discharges associatsd with consinuction activities from the idenlified site that are authorized by a
NPDES general permit have otherwise been elinvinated,
2. Al Notices of Termination are to be sent {o the Agency to the mailing address in Part [1.0.1, using the form provided by the Agency.
Partill, SPECIAL CONDITIONS, MANAGEMENT PRACTICES, AND OTHER
NON-NUMERIC LIMITATIONS
A.  Prohibition on Non-Storm Water Discharges.
1. Exceplas provided in Part| paragraph B.2 and paragraph 2 below, all discharges covered by this permit shall be composed entirely of storm waler,
2. a.  Exceplasprovided in paragraph b below, discharges of matenials other than storm watermust be in gompiiance with 2 NPDES permit {other

1.

Additional Notification. Facifitics which are operating under approved iocal se

Facilities which discharge storm water associated with construclion site activity must use an NOf form provided by the Agency. NOIs must be signad
in accordance with Part VLG {Signalory Requirements) of this permit. NOUs and ihe appticable fee for construction sile activities are to be submitied

by certified mail to the Agency al the foliowing address:

Hinois Environmental Protsction Agency
Division of Water Pollution Contral, Mail Code #13
Aftention: Permit Section
1021 North Grand Avenue East
ost Office Box 19276
oprmgfcld, {ilinois 62794-9276

The complated NOI and $WPPP may be subimitted elacironically to the following email address: epa.constril1Oswpno@iliingais.goy

A copy of ihe leiter of potification of coverage along with the General NPDES Permii for Storm Water Discharges from Construction Sile Activities or
ather indication thal storm water discharges from the site are covered under an NPDES permit shall be posled ait the silein a prormnent place for

public viewing (such as alongside a building permit).

than this permit) issued for the discharge.

diment and erosion plans, grading plans, or storm water management




Electronic Filing - Received, Clerk's Office : 09/12/2014 - ** * PCB 201a-072 * * *

Page 4 NPDES Permit No. ILR10

b. The following non-storm waler discharges may be authorized by this permit provided ihe non-storm water compenent of the discharges is in
compliance with Part IV.D.5 (Nen-Storm Water Discharges): discharges from firs fighting activities; fire hydrent lushings; waters used to wash
vehicles where delergents are not used; waters used o control dust; potable water sources including uncontaminated waterline flushings;
landscape irrigation drainages: rouline external building washdown which does not uss detergents; pavement washwaters where spills or leaks
of toxic or hazardous maternals have not occurred {upless all spilled materal has been removed) and where detergents are not used;
uncontaminated alr conditioning condansale; springs; uncontaminated ground water; and foundation or fooling drains where flows are not
contaminated with process matarials such as solvents.

Discharges into Recelving Waters With an Approved Total Maximum Daily Load {TMDL):

Dischargaes to waters for which there is a TMOL allocation for sediment or a parameler that adrressed sediment (such as total suspended salids, turbidity,
or sittation) ara not eligible for coverage under this permit unless you develop and cerlify a SWPPP that is consistent with the assumplions and
requirements in the approved TMDL. To be eligible for coverage under this general permil, operators must incorporate into their SWPPP any canditions
applicable to iheir discharges necessary for consistency with the assumplions and requirements of the TMOL within any lirmeframes established in the
TMDL. Ifa specific numeric waste load allocation has been established thatwould apply to the project's discharges, the operaior must incorporate that
aliocation info its SWPPP and implement necessary steps to meet that allocalion. Please refer to the Agency website at.

hlip v epa. state L usiwaterdmdi/report-status.html

Discharges covered by this permit, alone or in combination with other sources, shall not cause or conlribute to a violalion of any applicable water quality
standard.

Part IV, STORM WATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLANS

A storm water pollution prevention plan shall be developed for sach construttion site covered by this permit. Storm waler poliution prevention plans shall ba
prepared in accordance with good engineering practices. The plan shal ideniify potental scurces of pollution which may reasonably be expected o affect the
aquelity of storm waler discharges associated with construction stie activity from the facility. In addition, the plan shall describe and ensure the implemeniation of
best management praciices which will be used to reduce the poliutants in storm water discharges assecialed with tonstruclion site activily and to assure
compliance with the terms and condiions of 1his permit, Faciliies mustimplement the provisions of the starm water poliution preventon plan required under
this part as 3 tondition of this permit.

A.

D

Deadlines for Plan Preparation and Compliance.

The plan shall:

1. Be compieled prior o the stard of the congtrucion to be coverad under this permit and submitted slectronically ta the Agency; and
2. Provide for corpilance with the lermns and schedule of the plan baginning with the initiation of construciion activiiss,

Signature, Plan Review and Notification,

1. The plan shalf be signed in accordanze with Part VI.G (Signajory Reguiremanis), and be retained an-site at the facility which generates the storm
waler discharge in accordance with Part VLE (Duty to Provide Information) of this parmiit.

2. Prior lo commencement of conslruction, the permittee shalt provide the plan to the Agency. Said plan shall be available at the sile.

3.  The pormiitee shalf make plans available upon request from this Agency or @ local agency approving sediment and erosion plans, grading plans, or
storm water management plang; or in the case of a storm water discharge associated with indusirial activity which discharges through a municipal
separate slorm sewer system wilh an NPDES permit, to the municipal operator of the system.

4, The Agency may nolify the permitiee atany time that the plan does notmeet one or ynorg of the minimum requirements of this Part. Such notification
shall identify those provisions of the permit which are not being met by the plan, and identify which provisions of the plan require modificagions in
ordar to mael the minimum requiremeils of this part. Within 7 days from recaipt of notification from the Agency, the permittes shall make the
required changes fo the plan and shall submit io the Agency a written certification that the requested changes have been made. Failure o comply
shall terminate authorizalion under this permit.

5. All stormwater pollulion prevention plans and all cornpteled inspection lormsireports required under this permit gre considered repors that shall he
available to the public at any reasonable Eme upon request. However, the permiltee may clalm any portion of a storm water poflution prevention plan
as confidential in accordance with 40 CFR Part 2.

Keeping Plans Current. The permitlee shall amend the plan whenever thers is a change in design, consiruciion, operafion, or maintenanse, which bas a
significant effect on the potential for the discharge of pollutants to Waters of the State and which has not atherwise been addressed in the plan or if the
storm water poliution prevention pian proves to be ineffective in eliminating or significantly minimizing poliutants from sources identified under paragraph
D.2 below, or in otherwise achieving the general ahieclivas of controlling pollutants in siormy water discharges associated wilh construstion site activity, In
addition, the plan shail be amended to idenlify any new Conlractor andior subcontractor that will implement a measure of the storm water pollution
prevention plan. Amandments o the plan may be reviewed by the Agency in the same manner as Fart V.8 above. Any revisions of the documents for
the slorm waler pollution preveniion plan shall be kept on site at all imes,

Contents of Plan. The slorm water poliution prevention plan shall include the following items:
1. Sile Description. Each plan shall, provide s description of the following:

. Adescriplion of the nature of the construction acfivily or demolition work;
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b.  Adescription of the intended sequence of major activities which djsturb soils for major partions of the site (e.g. clearing, grubbing, excavalion,

grading}:
¢.  Anestimate of the tolal area of the site and the lolal area of the site thalis expecied to be disturbed by excavation, grading, or other activities;
d.  An estimate of the runofl coefficient of the site after consiruction activities are complated and existing data dascribing the soil of the guality of
any discharge from lhe sile;
¢.  Asile map indicating drainage patizrns and approximate slopes anticipated before and after major grading activities, locations where vehicles

enter or exit the site and controls o prevent offsita sediment tracking, areas of soil disturbance, the location of major structural and nonstructural
conlrols identified in the plan, the location of areas where stabilization practices are expected to vecur, surface waters (including wetlands), and
locations where storm waler is discharged to a surface water; and

f.  The name of the receiving waler{s} and the ullimate receiving water(s), and areal extent of wetland acreage at the site,

Controls. Each plan shallinclude a descriplion of appropriate controfs that will be implemenied at the construction site. The llinois Urban Manual
(hitpdlvesw.il nres.usda goviiechnicallengineer/urbaniindex.himl) or other similar documenis shall be used for developing the appropriate manage-
ment practices, controls or revisions of the plan, The plan will clearly describe for each majar activity identifled In paragraph D.1 above, appropriate
cantrols and the timing during the canstrustion process that the controls will be implemented. {For example, perimster controls for one portion of the
sile will be installed after the clearing and grubbing necessary for installation of the measurs, but before the clearing and grubbing for the remaining
poriions of the site. Perimeter conirols will be aclively maintained until final stabilization of those portions of the site upward of the perimeler control.
Temporary perimeter conirols will be removed after final stabifization). The description of controls shall address as appropriais the following

minimum companents:

a. Erosion and Sediment Controls.

(i} Stabilization Practices. A descrption of interim and permanent stabilizalion practives, including site-specliic scheduling of the
implemeniation of the praclices. Sie plans should ensure that exisling vegetalion is preserved whera practicable and that disturbed
portions of the site are siabilized. Stsbilizotion prachices may include: lemporarily seeding, permanant seaeding, mulching, geolextiles,
sod stabilizaiion, vegetative bufier strips, protection of trees, preservation of reature vegetation, staged or slaggered development, and
other appropriate measures. A record of the dales when major grading aclivilies aocur, when consiruction aclivities temporarily or
permanenily cease on a portion of the site, and when statilizalion measures are initiated shall be included in the plan, Except as provided
in paragraphs (AY and (B balow, stabikzalion measures shail be inifaied as scon as practicable in portions of the site where constuction
activities have lemporarily or permanently ceased, bulin no case morn than 7 days after the construction aclivity in thatporion of tha site
has temporarily or parmanentlty ceased as foliows: '

{AY Whers the initlation of stabilizetion measures by the 7th day afler corstruction aclivily termporarily or permanently ceases on a porlion
of the site it preciuded by snow cover. stabilization measuies shall be iniliated as soon as practicable,

(B} Where conslruction activity will resume an a portion of the site withint 14 days frem when aclivities ceasead, (e.g. the total ime period
1hat construction activity is temporarily ceased is tess than 14 days) then stabilization mueasures o not have o be initiated on that
porticn of sile by ihe 7th day aftar construction aclivily temporarily ceasad.

Structural Practices, Adescription of structural practices utilized to divert flows from exposed solis, store flows or othenwise limit runoff
and the discharge of pollutants from exposed areas of the site. Such practices may include siit fences, earth dikes, drainage swales,
sediment traps, check dams, subsurface drains, pipe slope drains, level spreaders, storm drain inlet protection, rock cutlet protection,
reinforced soil retaining syslems, gabions, and temgorary or permanent sediment basins. Structural practices should be placed on upland
solis to the degree practicable. The installation of these devices may be subject 1o Section 404 of the CWA,

-

i

(ili) Best Managemant Praclices for Impaired Walers. For any sile which discharges direcily to an impaired wateridentified on the Agency's
website for 303(d) listing for suspended solids, Wrhidity, or siltation e siorra water potiuliun prevention plan shall be designed for a storm
event equal lo or greater than a 25-year 24-hour rainfall event. If required by federal regulations or the llinols Environmental Protection
Agency's Hlinois Urban Manual, the storm waler pollution prevention plan shall adhere fo a more restictive design cfiteria. Please refer 1o
the Agency's websile at (hitp:/hvew,epa,state.dl.ushvater/irmdlF303¢-ii )

b.  Storm Water Management. A description of measures that will be installed during tha construction process to control poliutants in storm water
discharges that will oceur after construction aperations have been completed. Struchimal measures should be placed on upland soils fo the
degree attainable. The installation of these devices may be subject fo Section 404 of the CWA. This permit only addresses the installation of
storm water management measures, and not the uttimate operation and maintenance of such structures after the construction acliviies have
been completed and the site has undergone final stabilization. Permittees are responsible for anly the instaliation and maintanance of storm
water managemeant measures prior to final slabilization of the site. and are not responsible for maintenance sfter storm water discharges
associaled with industnal activity have besen eliminated fram the site.

(i)  Such pracices may include: storm waler detention structures (including wet ponds); storm waler raterition struciures; flow sitenuation by
use of open vegelated swales and natural depressions; infiltration of runoff onsite; and sequential systems (which combine several
practices). The storm water pollution prevention plan shall include an explanation of the technical basis used lo select the praclices lo
control pollution wherz flows micaed predovelopment levels,

(i} Velocity dissipation devices shall be placed at discharge locations and along the length of any outfall channe! as necessary to provide a
non-erosive valngity flow from the structure to a water course so that the natural physical and biological characteristics and funclions are
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maintained and pretectad (e.g. maintenance of hydrologic conditions, such as the hydroperiod and hydrodynamics present prior lo the
initiation of construction activities).

{i) Unless otherwise specified in the fifinois Environmental Protection Agency's Hlinois Urban Manual, the slorm water pollution prevention
plan shall be designed for a storm event equal to or greater than a 25-year 24-hour rainfall event,

¢.  Other Controls.

iy Waste Disposal. No solid materials, including building materials, shall be discharged fo Waters of the Stale, except as authorized by a
Section 404 permil.

(i1} The plan shall ensrure and demonstrate compliance with applicable State and/or local waste disposal, sanitary sewer or seplic system
regulations.

(i) For construction sites that raceive concrete ar asphalt from off site locations, the plan rmust identify and include appropriate controls and
measures o reduce or eliminate these dischargas.

d, Approved State or Local Plans.

(i) The management praclices, conlrols and other provisions contained In the storm water polluion prevention plan must be at least as
protective as the requirements conmtained in lllinois Enwvironmental Protection Agency's Hllinois Urban Manuai, 2002, Facillies which
discharge storm water associated with construction site activiies must include in their slorm water poliution prevention plan grocedures
and requirements specified in epplicable sediment and erosion sile plans or storm water management plans approved by local officials,
Reguiremeants specified in sediment and erosion site plans or site permits or storm water management site plans or site petmils approved
by losal officials that are applicable 1o protecting surface water resources are, upon submittat of an NO! o be authorized o discharge
under this parmit, incorporated by reference and are enforceable under this permit. The plans shall inclyde ali requirements of this permit
and inciude ‘more skringent standards required by any local approval, This pravision does not apply o provisions of masier plans,
comprehensive plans, non-enforceable guidelines or technical guidance docurmants that are notidentified in a spacific plan or permit that
isissued for tha consiruction site,

&) Dischargers seeking allernative permit requirements are not authorized by Ihis permit and shail submit an individual permitapplication in
accordance with 40 CFR 122.26 al the address indicated in Par{ 11D (Where 1o Submit) of this permil, along with a descriplion of why
requiraments in approved iocal plans or permits shouid not ba applicable as 3 condition of an NPDES permil.

Maintenance, The plan shall inchide a description of procedures to maiatain in good and efiective operating condiions vegelation, erosion and

sedimant contre! measures and oiher protective measures identified in the site plan.

Inspections. Qualified personnel {provided by the permiltee) shall inspect distrbied dreas of he ceasiruction site hat have notf bheen finally
stabilized, swucwral control measures, and locations where vehicles enter or exit the site at least onez every seéven calendar days and within 24
hours of the end of & slonm thats 0.8 inches or greater or pquivalent snowhall, Qualificd personnel means a person knowledgeable in the prindiples
and pragtices of eresion and sedimen! conirols measures, such as a licensed Professional Engineer (P.E.). a Certified Professional in Erosion and
Sediment Comtrol (GPESC). a Certified Ercsion Sediment and Starm Water Inspactor (CESSWI) or other knowiedgeable parson who possesses the
skills to assess conditions at the constructon sile that could impact storm water quality and o assess the effestivenaess of any sediment and erosion
contral measures selected 10 conirol the quality of storm waler discharges from the construction activities.,

Disturbed areas and areas used for slorage of materials ihat are exposed o precipitation shall be inspacied for evidence of. or the potential for,
pollutanis entering the drainage system, Eresion and sediment conirol measures identified in the plan shall be observed to ensure that they are
operating coractly. Where discharge locations or points are accessible, they shall be inspected to ascertain whether erosion conirol measures
are effective in preventing significant impacts to receiving waters, Locations where vehicles enter orexithe site shall e inspastiad for evidence

a.

of offsite sediment tracking.

b, Based on the results of the inspeciion, the description of polential poliutant sources identifiee! in the plan in accordance with Part IV.D. 1 (Sile
Description) of this parmit and poltution prevention measures identified in the plan in accordance with Part IV.0.2 (Controls) of this permit shall
ba revised as appropriste as soon as prasticable afler such inspection. Such modifications shall provide for timely implemantation of any
changes to the plan within 7 calendar days following the inspection.,

¢ Areport summanzing the scope of the inspection, name(s) and qualifications of persennef making the inspection, the date(s) of the inspection,
major obsarvations relating to the implementation of the storm water pollution prevention plan, and aclions taken in accordance with paragraph
b above shall he made and retained as part of the slorm water pallution prevention plan for at least three years from the date that the permit
coverage expires or is terminated. All inspection reports shall be retained at the construction site. The report shall be signed in accordance
with Parl VI.G (Signatory Requirements) of this parmit.

d.  The permitiee shall nolify the appropriate Agency Field Operations Section office by email at: epa.swo i5.g0v , telephone or fax
within 24 hours of any incidence of noncompliance for any vielation of the siorm water poliution prevention plar observed during any inspection
conducted, or for viclations of any condilion of this permil. The permittee shall complele and submil within 5 days an "Incidence of
Noncompliance™ (JON) repor! {or any violation of the storm waier poltution prevention plan observed during any inspaction conducted, or far
vinlations of any condition of this permit. Submission shall be on forms provided by the Agency and include spedific information on the cause of
noncompliance, actions which wete taken 10 prevent any further causes of noncompliance, and a steternent detailing any environenental
impact which may hava resulted from the noncompliance.

g, All reports of nancompliance shall be signed hy a responsible authority as defined in Part VI.G (Signatory Requirements).
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. After the inltial contact has been made with the apprapriale Agency Field Operations Section Office, all reports of nancompliance shali be
maited to the Agency at the following address:

tHinois Environmental Protection Agency
Division of Water Pollufion Control
Compliance Assurante Section

1021 North Grand Avenue Eas!

Post Offica Box 19276

Springfield, linols 52794-9276

5. Non-Storm Water Discharges, Except for flows from fire fighting activities, sources of non-storm water listad in Part 11LA.2 of this pérmit that are
combinerd with storm water discharges associated with industrial activity must ba identified in the plan. The plan shall identify and insure the
implamentation of appropriate pollution prevention measures for the non-storm waler component(s) of the discharge.

Additional requirements for storm water discharges from industrial activities other than construction, including dedicated asphalt plants, and
dedicated concrete plants. This permit may only authorize any storm water discharge associated with industrial activity from a consiruction site thatis
mixed with a storm water dischargs from an industrial source other than construction, where:

1. Theindustial source other than construction is located on the same site as the consiruction activity,

2. Stormwater discharges associated with industrial activily from the areas of the sile where construction aclivities are ccaurring are in compliance with
ihe termms of this permit; and

3. Storm waler discharges associated with indusirial activity from the areas of the site where industrial ac-'(ivi&y other than construction are occurring
{including storm water discharges from dedicaled asphalt plants {ofher than asphail emulsion faciities) and dedicated concrele plants) are in
compliance with the lerms, including applicable NOJ or application requirements, of a different NPDES general permit or individual permil authorizing
such discharges.

Contractors.

1. The storm water pollution prevention plan must clearly identify for each measure ideniified in the plan, the contranton(s} or subcontractor(s) thas will
implement ine measure, All conlractors and subcontraciors idenéified in the plan must sign a copy of the certification siatement in paragraph 2 below
in accordance with Part VLG (Signatory Reguirements) of this permit, All cerlifications mustbe included in the stormwater poliution prevention pian
except for pwners thal are acting as contraclors, '

2. Certification Statement. Al contraciors and subcontractors identified in a storm water poliution preverition plan in accordancs with paragragh 1
above shall sign a copy of ihe following certificafion statemeant before conducting any professional service at the site identified in the storm waier
poliution prevention plan:

"1 certify under penalty of law that | understand the terms and conditions of the general National Poliwtant Discharge Elimination System
(NPDES) permiit {{ILR10) that authordzes the storm waler discharges assoclated wilh industrial activity from the consiruction sile identified as
part of this certification.”

The cerliicaticn must include the name and litle of the person providing the signature in accordance with Part VI.G of this pervut;  the name.
address and telephans numbaer of tha coniracting firm; the address (or other identifying description) of the site; and the date the certfication is made.

Part V. RETENTION OF RECORDS

A

The permitiee shall relain copies of storm water polliufion prevention plans and ali reports and nofices required by this permit, and records of all data used
to complete the Notice of Intent to bz coverad by this permit, for a period of at ieast three years from the date that the permit coverage expires or is
lerminated. This pericd may be extended by request of the Agency at any time.

The permitice shall ratain a copy of the storm water pollution preventien plan and any revisions o said plan required by this permitat the construction site
from the date of projectinitiation to the dale of final stabilization,

Part VI. STANDARD PERMIT CONDITIONS

A.

Duty to Comply. The permittes must comply with all conditions of this permit. Any permit noncompliance constitutes a viclation of the lllinois
Environmental Protection Act and the CWA and is grounids for enforcement action; for permil termination, revecation and reissuance, or modification: or
for denial of & parmit renewal application. .

Continuation of the Expired General Permit. This permit expires five years from the date of issuance. An expired general permit continues in force and
aHfect until a new general permit or an individual permit is issued. Only those facilities authorized {o discharge under the expiing general permit are
covered by the continued permit,

Need to halt or reduce activity not a defonse. it shall not be a dafense for a permiltee in an enforcement action that it would have been necessary to
halt or reduce the permitted activity in order lo maintaln compliance with the conditions of this permit,

Duty to Mitigate. The permitiee shail lake all reasonable steps to minimize or prevent any dissharge in violation of this permit which has 5 reasonable
likelihcod of adversely afiacling human health or the environment.
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E,

Duty to Provide Information. The permittee shall furnish within a reasonable ime fo the Agency or local agency approving sediment and erosion control
plens, grading plans, or storm water management plans; or in the case of a storm water discharge associated with Industrial activity which discharges
through a municipal separaie siorm sewear system with an NPDES permit, fo the municipal operator of the system, any informalion which is requested to
determine compliance with this permit. Upon request, the permittee shall also furnish to the Agency or local agency approving sediment and erosion
control ptans, grading plans, or storm water management plans; or in the case of a storm water discharge assoclated with Industrial activity which
discharges through a municipal separate storm sewer system with an NPDES permit, lo the municipal operator of the system, copies of all records

required lo be kept by this permit.

Other Information, When the permiitee becomes aware that he or she failed to submit any relevant facts or submitted incorrect information in the Notice
of Intent or in any other report to the Agency. he or she shall promptly submit such facts or information,

Signatory Requirements, All Notices of Intent, storm waler pollution preventicn plans, reports, certifications or information either submitted to the Agency
or the operator of a large or medium mupicipal separate storm sewer system, or that this permit requires ba maintained by the permittee, shall be signed.

1, Al Notices of Intent shall be signed as follows:

a.  For a corporation: by a responsible corporate officer, For the purpose of this section, a responsible corporate officer means: (1) a president,
secretary, treasurer, or vice-prasident of the corporation in charge of a principal business function, or any other person who periorms similar
policy or decision-making functions for the corporation; or {2) any person authorized to sign documents that has been assigned or delegated

said authority in accordance with corporaie procedures;
b,  For a partnership or sole proprigtorship: by a general pariner or the proprietor, respectively; or

¢, Fora municipality, Stale, Federal, or other public agency: by either a principal executive officer or ranking elected official. For purposes of this
section, a principal executive officer of a Federal agency includes {1) the chief executive officer of the agency, or (2) a senior execulive officer
having responsibilily for the overall operations of a principal geagraphic unit of the agency.

2. Al reports required by the permit and other information reguested by the Agency shall be signed by a person described ahove or by a duly
authorized representative of that person. A person is a duly authorized representative only if;

a. The auvthorization is made in writing by a person described above and submitied to the Agency.

b. The authorizalion specifies either an individual or a pasilion having responsibility for the overall operation of the regulated facility or activity,
such as the position of manager, operator, superintendent, or position of equivalent responsibility or an individual or position having overall
responsibilily for environmental matters for the company. (A duly authorized representative may thus be either a named individual or any

individuaf occupying @ named position).

Changes to Authorization. If an aulhorization under Part 1.C {Authorization} is no longer accurate because a different individual or position
has responsibility for the overall operation of the construclion site, a new authorization satisfying the requirements of Part |.C must be submitted
to the Agency prior lo or logether with any reports, information, or applicalions to be signed by an authorized representative.

d. Certification. Any person signing documents under this Part shall make the following ceriification:

"{ ertify under penaity of aw that this document and ali attachments were prepared under my direciion or supervision in accordance with
a system designed to assure thatgualified personnel properly gathered and evaluated the information submitted, Based on my inquiry of
the person or persons who manage the system, or those persons direclly responsible for gathering the information, the information
submilted is, fo the bes! of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. | am aware that thers are significant penalties for
submilling false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations.®

Penalties for Falsification of Reports. Section 309{c){4) of the Clean Watgr Act pravides that any person who knowingly makes any false material
statement, representation, or certification in any record or other document submitted or required to be maintained under this permit, including reports of
compliance or noncompliance shalf, upan conviction, be punished by a fine of notmore than $10,000, or by imprisonment for notmore than 2 years, or by
both, Section 44(j)(4) and (5) of the Environmental Protection Act provides that any person who knowingly makes any false statement, representation, or
cerlification in an application form, or form pertaining to a NPDES permit commils a Class A misdemeanar, and in addition to any other penalties provided
by law is subjeet to a fine not to exceed §10,000 for each day of violation,

Penalties for Falsification of Monitoring Systems. The CWA provides that any person who falsifies, tampers with, or knawingly renders inaccurate any
monitoring device or method required lo be maintained under this permit shall, upon conviction, be punished by fines and imprisonment described in
Section 309 of the CWA. The Environmental Proteclion Act provides that any person who knowingly renders inaccurate any monitoring device or record
required In connection with any NPDES permit or with any discharge which is subject to the provisions of subsegction {f) of Section 12 of the Act commits a
Class A misdemeanor, and in addition to any other penalties provided by law Is subject 1o a fine not to excead $10,000 for each day of violation.

Oil and Hazardous Substance Liabflity. Nothing in this permit shall be construed to praclude the institution of any legal aclion or relleve the pemnittee
from any responsibilities, liabllities, or penalties to which the permiitee is or may be subjact under section 311 of the CWA.

Proparty Rights. The issuance of this permit does not cenvey any property rights of any sort, nor any exclusive privileges, nor does it authorize any injury
to private property nor any invasion of persona rights, nor any infingement of Federal, State or local laws or regulations.

Severability. The provisions of this permit are severable, and if any provision of this permit, or the application of any provision of this permit to any
circumstance, is held invalid, the application of such provision to other circumstances, and the remainder of this permit shall not be affected thereby.
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M.

N.

o

Transfers. This parmilis not iransferable lo any person except after notice to the Agency. The Agency may require the discharger to apply for and oblain
an individua) NPDES permit as staled in Part 1.C (Authorization).

Requiring an individual Permit or an Alternative General Parmit.

1. TheAgency may require any persan authorized by this permit to apply for and/or obtain either an indlvidual NPDES permit or an alternative NPOES

general permit. Any interested parson may pelition the Agency to take action under this paragraph. Where the Agency requires a discharger
authorized to discharge under his permil to apply for an individual NPDES permit, the Agency shall notify the discharger in writing that a permit
spplicalion is required. This nolification shall include a brief statement of the reasons for this decision, an application form, a statement setting &
deadline for the discharger to file the application, and a statement that on the effeclive date of the individual NPDES perrit or the alternative
general permit as it applies to the individual permittee, coverage under this general permit shall autornatically terminate. Applications shall be
submitted to the Agency indicated in Part LD (Where to Submit) of this permil. The Agency may gran! additional time to submit the application
upon requast of the applicant, It a discharger fajls to submitin a imely manner an individual NPDES permit application as required by the Agency
under this paragraph, then the applicability of this permit to the individual NPDES permitiee is automatically terminated at the end of the day
specified by the Agency for application submiftal, The Agency may require an individuat NPDES pernit based on:

information received which indicales the receiving water may be of particular biclogical significance pursuant to 35 N, Adm. Code
202.195(d)}{8Y;

a.

b. wheiher the recelving waters are impaired walers for suspended solids, turbidily or siftation as idenlified by the Agency's 303(d) listing;

c. size of conslruction site, proximilt}r of sile to the receiving siream, elc.
The Agency may also require monitoring of any storm water discharge from any site fo determine whethar an individual permitis required.

2. Anydischarger autherized by this permit may request 1o be excluded from the coverage of this permil by applying for an individual permil. In such
cases, the permittee shall submitan individual application in accordance with the requirements of 40 CFR 122.28(c) 1311}, with reasons supporting
tha request, to the Agency at the address indicated in Part 11D (Where to Submit} of this parmit. The request may be granted by issuance of any
individual permit or an alternative general permit if the reasons ciled by the permittes are adequate o support the request,

3. When an individoal NFDES permit is issusd fo a discharger clherwise subject {o this permit, or the discharger is avihorized to discharge under an
alternative NPDES general permi, the applicability of this permil to the individual NPDES permiltes is avtomalically terminated on the effscliva daie
of the individual permit or the date of authorization of coverage under the alternative general permil,whichever he case may be. When an individual
NPDES permit is denied lo a discharger olhamwise subject to this germil, or the discharger is denied for coverage under an alternative NPDES
general permit, the applicability of this permit 1o #e Individual NPDES permiltee remains in effect, unless otherwise specified by the Agency.

State/Environmental Laws. No cordition of this permit shall release the permiltes from any responsibility or requirernenis under Gther environmental
statutes or requiations.

Proper Operation and Maintenance. The permitiee shail ai all times properly operate and maintain all facilities and systems of freatment and conirol
{and related appurtenances) which are installed or used by the permitiee to achieve compliance with fie conditions of this permit and with the
requirements of storm water poliution prevention plans, Proper operation and maintenance also includes adequate laboralory controls and appropriate
quality assurance procedures. Proper operation and maintenance requires the operation of backup or aukifiary faciliies or similar systems, instalied by a
permittes oniy when necessary to achisve compliance with the conditions of the permil,

Inspection and Entry. The penniltee shall atlow the [EPA, or an auihorized representative upon sreseniation of cradentials and ofher documents as may
be required by law, to:

1. Enterupon the permitiee's pramises where a regulated facility or aciivity is localed or condugled, or where records must be keptunder the conditions
of this permit;

2. Have access to and copy at reasonable imes., any records that must be kept under the Conditions of this permit;

3. Inspect at reasonable imes any faciliies, equipment {including monitoring and conlrol equipment), practices, or operalions regulaled or required
under this permit; and
4. Sarople or monilor &t reasonable limes, for the purposes of assuring permit compliance or as othenvise authorized by the Clean Water Act, any

substances or pararnaters at any location.

Permit Actions. This permit may be mcdified, revoked and reissued, or lerminated for cause. The filing of a request by the permitiee for a parmit
modification, revocation and reissuance, or termination, or a notification of planned changes or anlicipated noncomplance does not stay any permit

condition.

Part Vii. REOPENER CLAUSE

A.

Ifthere is evidence indicating potential or realized impacts on water quality due lo any storm water discharge associated with industrial activity covered by
this permit, the discharger nmiay be required 1o oblain anindividual permit or an alternative general permitin accordance with Part 1.C (Authorization) of this
permit or the permit may be modified to include different fimitations and/or requirements,

Permit modification or revocation will be condueled according to provisions of 35 1ll. Adm. Code, Subiitie C, Chapier [ and the provisions of 40 CFR
122.62, 122,63, 122.64 and 124.5 and any other applicable public participation procedures.
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C. The Agency wili reopen and modify this permit under the following circumstances:

1. the U.S. EPA amends ils regulations conceming public parlicipation;

2. acourtof competentjurisdiction binding in the State of iliinois or the 7 Circuit Court of Appeals Issues an order necessilaling a modification of public
participation for general permits; or

3. o incorporate federslly required modifications to the substaniive requirements of this permil,

Part Viil. DEFINITIONS

"Agengy” means he lllincis Environmental Protection Agency.

"Best_Management Praclices” ("BMPs") means schedules of aclivities, prohibitions of praclices, maintenance procedures, and other management

praclices to prevent or reduce the poliution of waters of the United States, BMPs also include treatment requirements, operating procedures, and
praclices to control construction site runoff, spilfage or leaks, siudge or waste disposal, or drainage from raw material storage.

"Cornmencement of Construction or Demolition Activities” The initial disturbance of soils associated with clearing, grading, or excavating aclivities or other
consiruction or demolition aclivities.

"CWA" means Clean Water Act (formerly referred to as the Federal Water Pollution Control Act or Federal Water Pollution Control Act Amendments of
1972) Pub. L. 92-300, as amended Pub, L. 95-217, Pub, L, 95-576, Pub. L. (96-483 and Pub. L. 97-117, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.).

"Dedicated portable asphall plant” A portable asphalt plant that is lacated on or conliguous to a construction sile and that provides asphalt only to the
conslruction site that the plant is localed on or adjacent to, The {erm dedicaled porfable asphall plant does notinclude facilities that are subject to the

asphalt emulsion effluent limitation guideline at 40 CFR 443,

"Dedicated portable concrete plant” A portable concrete plant ihatis located on or contiguous to a construction site and that provides concrele only to the

construction site that the plant Is locaied on or adjacent fo.

"Dedicated sand or gravel operation™ An operation thal produces sand andfor gravel for a single construction project.

"Director” means the Director of the lllinois Environmental Protection Agency or an authorized reprasentative,

“Final Siabillzation means that all soil disturbing activities at the site have been completed, and either of the tivo following condifions are met:

(i) A uniform (a.g., evenly distributed, without large bare areas) perennial vegatative cover with a density of 70 percent of the native backaround
vegefative cover for tha area has been established on all unpaved areas and areas not covered by permanent struciures, or

(i) Equivalent permanent stabilization measures {such as the use of riprap, gabions, or geotexliles) have been employed.

. For individual lols in residential construction, final stabilization means that either:

(i) The homebuilder has completed final stabilization as specified above, or

{if) The homebuilder has established temporary stabilization Including perimeler controls for an individual fot prior to occupation of the home by the
homeowner and informing the homeowner of the need for, and benelils of, final stabilization.

“Large and Medium municipal separate slorm sewer system" means ail municipal separate storm sewers that are either:

(i) Locatedin anincorporated place {city) with a population of 100,000 or more as determined by the latest Decennial Census by the Bureau of Census
(these cities are listed In Appendices F and G of 40 CFR Part 122); or

(i) Located In the counties with unincorporated urbanized populations of 100,000 or more, except municipal separate storm sevsers that are located in
the incorporated places, townships or towns wilhin such counties (these countles are fisted in Appendices H and ) of 40 CFR Part 122); or

{ily Owned oroperaled by a municipality other than those described in paragraph {1} or {if) and that are designated by the Director as part of the large or
medium municipal separate storm sewer system.

"Point Source” means any discernible, confined, a2nd discrete conveyance, Including but not limited lo, any pipe, ditch, channel, tunnal, conduit, well,
discrete fissure, container, rolling stock, concentrated animal feeding operation, landfill leachate collection system, vessel or other floating crafl from which
pollutants are or may be discharges, This term does not include return flows from irrigated agricuflure or agricultural storm water runoff,

"Storm Water” means storm water runoff, snow melt runoff, and surface runoff and drainage.
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"Stoqmn Water Associated with Industrial Activity” means the discharge from any conveyance which is used for collecling and conveying storm water and
which is directly related to manufacturing, processing or raw materials storage areas at an Industrial plant. The term does notinclude discharges from
facilities or activities excluded from the NPDES program. For the categories of industries identified in subparagraphs (i) through (x) of this subsection, the
term includes, butis not fimited {o, starm water discharges from industrial plant yards; fmmediate access roads and rait lines used or traveled by carriers of
raw materials, manufaciured products, waste maierial, or by-products used or created by the facility; material handling sites; refuse sites: sites used for the
application or disposal of process waste waters (as defined at 40 CFR 401); sltes used for the siorage and maintenance of material handling equipment;
sites used for residual treatment, slorage, or disposal; shipping and recelving areas; manufacturing bulldings; slorage areas (including tank farms) for raw
materials, and intermediate and finished products; and areas where industrial activity has 1aken place in the past and significant materials remain and are
exposed lo storm waler. For the categories of industries identified in subparagraph (xi}, the term Includes only storm water discharges from all areas
fisted in the previous sentence (except access roads) where material handling equipment or activities, raw materials, intermediate products, final products,
wasle materlals, by-products, or indusirial machinery are exnosed to storm water. For the purposes of this paragraph, material handling activities include
the slorage, loading and unfording, fransportation, or conveyance of any raw material, intermediate product, finished product, by-product or waste
product. The term excludes areas located on plant lands separate from the plant's Industrial activities, such as office buildings and accompanying parking
lots as long as the drainage from the excluded areas is not mixed with storm waler drained from the above described areas. Industrial facllities (incuding
industrial facllities that are Federally or municipafly owned or operated ihat meet the description of the facllities listed in this paragraph (i)- (xi)) include
those facilities designated under 40 CFR 122.26(a)(1)(v). The following categories of facilities are considered fo be engaging in "industrial activity” for

purposes of this subsection:

() Facilities subjeci to storm water effluent limitations guidelines, new source performance standards, or taxic poilutant effiuent standards under 40 CFR
Subchapter N {except facilities with toxic pollutant effluent standards which are exempted under category (xi) of this paragraph};

(i) Facllities classified as Standard Indusirial Classifications 24 (excepl 2434), 26 (except 265 and 267), 28, 29, 311, 32, 33, 3441, 373;

{ii) Facililies classified as Standard Industrial Classifications 10 through 14 (mineralindustry) including active or inactive mining operations (except for
areas of coal mining operations meeling the definition of a reclamation area under 40 CFR 434.11(1)) and ofl and gas exploration, production,
processing, or treatment operations, or transmission facilities that discharge storm water contaminated by contact with or thathas come into contact
with, any overburden, raw matenial, infermediate producls, finished products, byproducts or waste products located on the site of such operations;
Inactive mining operations are mining sites that are not being actively mined, but which have an identifiable owner/operatar;

(iv) Hazardous waste treatment, storage, or disposal facilities, including those that are operating under interim status or & permit under Subfitle C of
RCRA;

(v) Landfills, land application sites, and open dumps that have recelved any industrial wasles (waste thal is recaived from any of the facilities described
under this subsection) including those that are subject to regulation under Subtitle D of RCRA;

(vi) Facilities involved in the recycling of materials, including metal scrapyards, battery reclaimers, salvage yards, and automobile junkyards, including
but limited to those classified as Standard Industrial Classification 5015 and 5083;

(vii) Steam electric power generating facifiies. including coal handting sifes;

(vill) Transportation facilities classified as Standard Industrial Classifications 40, 41, 42, 44, and 46 which have vehicle maintenance shops, equipment
cleaning operalions, or airport deicing operations. Only those portians of the facilily that are either involved in vehicle maintenance (including vehicle
rehabilitation, mechanical repairs, painting, fueling, and lubrication), equipment cleaning operations, airport deicing operations, or which are
otherwise identified under subparagraphs (i}-(vii} or (ix)-(xi} of Ihis subsection are associated with industrial activity;

{ix) Trealment works treating domestic sewage or any other sewage sludge or wastewater treatinent device or system, used in the storage treatment,
: recycling, and reclamation of municipal or domestic sewage, including land dedicated to the disposal of sewage sludge that are located within the
confines of the facility, with a design Nlow of 1.0 mgd or more, or required to have an approved pretreatment program under 40 CFR 403. Not

included are farm lands, domestic gardens or lands used for siudge management where sludge is beneficially reused and which are not physically .

located in the confines of the facility. or areas that are in compliance wilh 40 CFR 503;

(xj Construction activity including clearing, grading and excavation activities except: operations thatresultin the disturbance of less than one acre of
totat land araa which are nol part of a larger conimon plan of development or sale unless otherwise designated by the Agency pursuant o Part 1.B.1,

() Facilities under Slandard Induslrial Classifications 20, 21, 22, 23, 2434, 25, 265, 267,27, 283, 31 (except 311}, 34 (except 3441), 35, 36, 37 (excapt
373), 38, 39, 4221-25, (and which are not otherwise included within categories (i)-(x)}.

"Waters” mean all accumulations of water. surface and underground, natural, and ariificial, public and private, or parts thereof, which are wholly or partially
within, flow through, or border upon the State of iflinois, except thaf sewers and reatment works are notincluded except as specially mentioned; provided,
that nothing herein contalned shal} aulhorize the use of natural or othenwise protected waters as sewers or reatmentworks except thatin-stream aeration

under Agency permit is allowable.
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I, CHRISTOPHER GRANT, an attorney, do certify that I caused to be served this 12th
day of September, 2014, the initial Comp]ai_nt and Notice of Filing in the case People v. Starved

Rock Adventures, Inc., upon the person listed below by certified mail, by placing same in an

envelope bearing sufficient postage with the United States Postal Service located at 100 W.

Randolph, Chicago, Illinois.
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CHRISTOPHER GRANT

Mr. Robert F. Bishop
Registered Agent

Starved Rock Adventures, Inc.
One Dee Bennett Road

P.0O. Box 2261

Ottawa Illinois 61350






